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WITNESS IDENTIFICATION 1 

Q. What is your name and business address? 2 

A. My name is Darin Burk. My business address is 527 E. Capitol Avenue, 3 

Springfield, IL. 4 

Q.  By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 5 

A. I am employed by the Illinois Commerce Commission (“Commission”) as Pipeline 6 

Safety Program (“PSP”) Manager of the Energy Division.  In my current position, 7 

I oversee the day-to-day operations of the PSP, which performs audits and 8 

inspections in accordance with the Guidelines for State Programs issued by the 9 

United States Department of Transportation (“USDOT”), Pipeline and Hazardous 10 

Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”).  The audits and inspections are 11 

conducted to ensure that jurisdictional Illinois natural gas system operators are 12 

meeting the minimum federal safety standards prescribed by 49 CFR §§191.1 – 13 

191.17, 191.23, 191.25,  192, 193 and 199; Ill. Adm. Code Part 520; by the 14 

Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act (220 ILCS 20/1, et seq.) (“Illinois Act”); and the 15 

Public Utilities Act (220 ILCS 5/) (“PUA”). 16 

Q. Please describe your education and experience. 17 

A.  Prior to employment with the Commission, I was a Technician employed by Utility 18 

Safety and Design Inc. (“USDI”) and the Southern Cross Corporation.  Both 19 

companies provide field consulting services for the natural gas industry.  My 20 

duties at USDI included code compliance related activities such as natural gas 21 

leak detection, corrosion control monitoring, pipeline installation, polyethylene 22 

pipe fusion, welding and fusion joint testing and line stopping.  Since coming to 23 
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work in the Commission’s PSP, I have received extensive technical training at 24 

the Transportation Safety Institute (“TSI”) in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, which is 25 

where state and federal pipeline safety inspectors receive technical education 26 

relating to the application of and enforcement of pipeline safety standards.  My 27 

TSI training included subjects such as incident investigation, pipeline integrity 28 

management, distribution and transmission pipeline operation and maintenance, 29 

operator qualification, pipeline corrosion control, welding and joining of pipeline 30 

materials, code enforcement and various other technical aspects of natural gas 31 

pipeline operations.  At the Commission, I held the position of Pipeline Safety 32 

Analyst for 17 years and was promoted to PSP Manager in January of 2007. 33 

PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY 34 

Q.  What is the purpose of your testimony? 35 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to present Staff’s position regarding the direct 36 

testimony of Peter Eichler, Joint Applicants (“JAs”) Ex. 2.0, as it relates to the 37 

JAs ability to meet the requirements of Section 7-204(b)(5) of the PUA. I have 38 

also reviewed data request responses provided by the JA.  Section 7-204(b)(5) 39 

requires that the utility remain subject to all applicable laws, regulations, rules, 40 

decisions and policies governing the regulation of Illinois public utilities.  I am 41 

specifically reviewing how Liberty Energy (Midstates) Corp. (“Liberty”) and Atmos 42 

Energy Corporation (“Atmos”) plan to ensure long-term compliance with the 43 

federal standards codified under 49 CFR Sections 191, 192, 193, and 199 and 44 

adopted by the Commission in 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590, regarding pipeline safety.  I 45 
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also provide the PSP’s position regarding the request for waiver of Section 5-106 46 

of the PUA included in JA Exhibit 2.0. 47 

Q. Please explain the authority or jurisdiction of the Commission in this 48 

matter. 49 

A. Through the enactment of the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act (“Act”), also 50 

known as Public Law 90-481 (49 U.S.C. Chapter 601), Congress mandated gas 51 

pipeline safety regulation by USDOT in 1968.  The Act provided for state pipeline 52 

safety regulation in states certified by USDOT.  In 1969, the Illinois General 53 

Assembly enacted the Illinois Act.  Section 3, paragraph (a) of the Illinois Act 54 

charges the Commission with adopting rules that are at least as inclusive and as 55 

stringent as the pipeline safety regulations adopted by the U.S. Secretary of 56 

Transportation, and requires the Commission to seek federal certification to 57 

regulate pipeline safety within Illinois.  Section 9 of the Illinois Act required the 58 

Commission to prepare and file with the Secretary of Transportation the initial 59 

and annual certification and report required by Section 5, paragraph (a) of the 60 

Illinois Act and the Commission has maintained certification since the 1970s. 61 

To maintain the authority for enforcement of the Minimum Federal Safety 62 

Standards granted to the Commission  under an agreement pursuant to 49 U.S.C 63 

Section 60105 of the Act with the USDOT Office of Pipeline Safety, the federal 64 

standards codified under 49 CFR Sections 191, 192, 193, and 199 have been 65 

adopted by the Commission  in 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590. 66 

Q.   How does the ICC meet the requirements of the certification agreement? 67 
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A. The PSP, conducts periodic audits and inspections of intrastate natural gas 68 

system operators within Illinois.  Those audits and inspections are conducted to 69 

determine if the minimum pipeline safety standards in 83 Ill. Adm. Codes  are 70 

being met by the operator.  When Pipeline Safety inspection findings establish 71 

that an operator is in apparent non-compliance with one or more of the 72 

standards, a Notice of Probable Violation (“NOPV”) is issued to the operator.  To 73 

resolve an NOPV, the operator is required to explain the action the operator will 74 

initiate to correct the violation as well as actions the operator intends to take to 75 

prevent a recurrence of a similar violation in the future of the specific code 76 

section.  If the operator does not acknowledge the alleged violation, refuses to 77 

take the corrective actions, or the actions taken by the operator are not adequate 78 

to correct the NOPV, Staff recommends that citation order proceedings be 79 

initiated to resolve the issue and, in some cases, civil penalties are assessed. 80 

Q. Do you have concerns relating to safety compliance after the merger? 81 

A. Yes, I have seen no evidence that Liberty is aware of the regulatory requirements 82 

placed upon a pipeline system operator or of how it intends to comply with them.   83 

Q. Have you requested information from Liberty to gauge awareness of and 84 

ability to comply with the regulatory requirements? 85 

A. Yes, I submitted Data Requests (PS – 1.01-1.08) to Liberty requesting a detailed 86 

list of documents pertaining to and used to demonstrate compliance with 83 Ill. 87 

Adm. Code Parts 265, 520, 590.10, and 595; the Illinois Act, and the PUA that 88 

will be maintained both outside and inside Illinois.  Liberty responded by 89 
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providing a limited list of documents to be maintained regarding compliance with 90 

the Code Parts identified above.   Liberty’s response does state that, regardless 91 

of the physical location of the records, Liberty will maintain digital copies that will 92 

be available in Illinois and that hard copies of documents can be made available 93 

in Illinois upon request. 94 

Q. Are digital copies of documents acceptable to demonstrate compliance 95 

with the applicable CFR sections, Code Parts, the Illinois Act and the PUA? 96 

A. Yes, providing that adequate safeguards are in place to track and identify any 97 

individuals that alter or make corrections to the digital records.  In addition, the 98 

digital records must be readily available for the frequent audits and inspections 99 

conducted by the PSP.  However, the Liberty response did not fully address my 100 

request and therefore did not alleviate my concerns.  The response only states 101 

that Liberty will keep certain documentation, but did not identify that 102 

documentation in adequate detail. 103 

Q. Why did you request a detailed listing of documentation? 104 

A. Had Liberty provided a detailed list of the specific documentation that they intend 105 

to maintain, it would have demonstrated that they are fully aware of the very 106 

extensive and detailed safety requirements of the CFR.  Since Liberty only 107 

provided a very brief list, I cannot determine if Liberty is fully aware of the safety 108 

requirements. 109 

Q.  Have you requested additional information from Liberty to address your 110 

concerns? 111 
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A.  Yes, I have sent a second Data Request (PS 2.01 – 2.19) for the actual written 112 

plans, programs and procedures required by the CFR that Liberty intends to use 113 

after the acquisition.  That documentation should contain procedures to address 114 

topics such as pipeline operations, maintenance, emergency response, pipeline 115 

damage prevention, public awareness, and integrity management, as well as 116 

other regulatory requirements.   117 

Q. Have you received and reviewed the requested documentation? 118 

A. No, the response to my second data requests are not due until after the Staff 119 

direct testimony filing date. 120 

Q. Do you have recommendations to offer the Commission relating to code 121 

compliance if the Commission approves the reorganization? 122 

A. Yes.  To assure that, subsequent to the reorganization, Liberty remains 123 

compliant with the Minimum Federal Safety Standards and the Illinois Act, I 124 

recommend that the Commission take the following actions: 125 

 1. The Commission should verify that Liberty has provided to the PSP 126 

Program the written documentation identified in PS 2.01 – 2.09 prior to approving 127 

the JA reorganization request.  After Liberty’s provides the plans and procedures 128 

identified in Data Requests PS 2.01 through 2.09, the PSP will examine them, 129 

identify any shortcomings in those plans and procedures and work with Liberty to 130 

correct those shortcomings. 131 

 2. The JA requested waiver of Section 5-106 should be conditioned upon the 132 

JA being required to maintain digital records in Illinois, to provide hard copies to 133 
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Staff upon request and a requirement for the JA to implement safeguards to track 134 

and identify whether alterations or corrections have been made to digital records 135 

and, if so, the individuals who made the changes. 136 

Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 137 

A.  Yes, it does. 138 


